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January 28, 2011 
 
Santa Barbara County 
Board of Supervisors 
105 East Anapamu Street, Suite 407 
Santa Barbara, California  93101 
 

RE: Ordinance Amending Chapter 25, Petroleum Code, to Address 
Regulation of “High Risk” Petroleum Operations & Operators 

 
Dear Chair Gray & Members of the Board: 
 
 The following comments on a proposed ordinance to amend the County’s 
Petroleum Code are submitted by the Environmental Defense Center (EDC).  EDC is a 
non-profit public interest law firm that represents community organizations in 
environmental matters affecting California’s south central coast. 
 
 We appreciate the Board’s interest in increasing the effectiveness and utility of 
the High Risk Operations Ordinance adopted on December 9, 2008.  EDC conditionally 
supports the proposed amendments to Chapter 25, with one proviso (described below). 
 
Background 
 
 The High Risk Operations Ordinance was made necessary after incidents at 
several facilities under common ownership/operation caused the release of more than 
150,000 gallons of oil into Santa Barbara County’s creek systems and environment in late 
2007 and early 2008.  The majority of these incidents were caused by aged and failing 
infrastructure, poor corporate and on-site management, and inefficient and/or insufficient 
regulatory oversight. 
 
 The High Risk Operations Ordinance was adopted in December 2008 by a 4-0 
vote (Mr. Firestone recused himself).  As noted by County staff in a Board Letter dated 
October 7, 2008, regarding onshore oil operations generally: 
 
 Through our inspection process it has become evident that some facilities pose a 
 higher risk to life limb and property.  In an effort to minimize these potential 
 safety issues, the Planning and Development Department is proposing the Board 
 adopt the [High Risk Operations Ordinance]. 
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 The [High Risk Operations Ordinance is] designed to encourage onshore 
 Petroleum Operators to properly maintain their facilities by utilizing good 
 workmanship and management practices to minimize code violations and oil 
 spills to the maximum extent feasible. 
 
We are not aware of any operation or operator that has been deemed “High Risk” under 
the High Risk Operations Ordinance since its adoption more than two years ago.  This 
speaks, in part, to the utility of the High Risk Operations Ordinance as a deterrant to bad 
actors. 
 
Remediation Requirements of High Risk Operations 
 
 Staff has proposed changes to Chapter 25, Section 25-43 that would clarify 
responsibilities for the preparation and implementation of remediation plans.  These 
changes are welcome.  However, one proposed change would reduce the High Risk 
Operations Ordinance’s effectiveness as a deterrant. 
 
 Subsection 25-43(f)/(h) 
 
 Subsection 25-43(f) of the High Risk Operations Ordinance currently provides: 
“Any shut-down order issued under this section shall be cancelled when the goals and 
guidelines of the remediation plan are achieved for that facility.”  (Emphasis added.) 
 
 Section 25-43 was subjected to scrutiny by the courts when Greka sued the 
County after the High Risk Operations Ordinace was adopted in 2008.  In April 2009, the 
U.S. District Court for the Central District of California dismissed Greka’s lawsuit and 
held that the High Risk Operations Ordinance was constitutional: 
 

If the Administrator shut down facilities owned or operated by a High Risk 
Operator, including facilities that are not High Risk Operations, the shut down 
could serve a legitimate government purpose. . . .  Because a ‘set of circumstances 
exists under which the Ordinance would be valid,’ Plaintiff's claims fail as a 
matter of law. 

 
Greka Oil & Gas, Inc. v. County of Santa Barbara, et al. (2009) at p. 5 (attached hereto). 
 
 Subsection 25-43(f) serves a critical piece of that legitimate government purpose, 
but the purpose would be defeated by the proposed 2011 amendments to the High Risk 
Operations Ordinance. 
  
 The proposed amendments would renumber Subsection 25-43(f) to Subsection 
25-43(h) and revise it to say: “Any shut-down order issued under this section shall be 
cancelled when the cause of the shut down order has been remediated.”  This particular 
change will not enhance staff’s ability to carry out the original intent of the High Risk 
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Operations Ordinance, because it would limit the County’s authority to comprehensively 
address endemic and facility-wide deficiencies. 
 
 “Goals and guidelines of the remediation plan” might include a number of 
objectives that are related to the cause of a shut-down but that are not the direct “cause of 
the shut-down order.”  For example, the High Risk Operations Ordinance augments the 
County’s ability to inspect at-risk facilities for failing infrastructure and inadequate 
management.  It is possible that a remediation plan would proactively address noted 
deficiencies before they lead to an incident which would require a second shut-down of 
the facility.  Cancelling an initial shut-down order prematurely would obviate the 
authority otherwise provided to the County under the High Risk Operations Ordinance. 
 
 There is no reason to change Subsection 25-43(f).  It would not increase the 
effectiveness of the High Risk Operations Ordinance, and it has already survived a legal 
challenge.  Subsection 25-43(f) should be left “as is” in order to maximize the County’s 
ability to protect human health and the environment. 
 
Conclusion 
 
 We appreciate the intent behind the proposed amendments, and we appreciate the 
time that staff has put into tackling the issue of onshore oil pollution.  We look forward to 
continuing a conversation about how to best improve the High Risk Operations 
Ordinance. 
 
 Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.  Thank you for 
considering our recommendations. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Nathan G. Alley 
Staff Attorney 
 
 
Attachment: Greka Oil & Gas, Inc. v. County of Santa Barbara, et al. (2009). 
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